
           
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 11, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 11, 2019 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 25, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held February 25, 2019 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding appointment of 

Council members as Bylaw Enforcement Officers.  
Recommendation: 

 That Mayor Belenkie, Councillor Begg and Councillor Clark be appointed as Bylaw 
 Enforcement Officers. 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
March 11, 2019 

7:00 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 11, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\03 11 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 regarding 
Hamber Island Subdivision Application – Resolution to authorize Statutory Rights 
of Way for drainage, snow clearing, and turnaround 
Recommendation: 

 That Council authorize the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer to sign two Statutory 
 Rights of Way documents related to the proposed subdivision of the Saito Lands, which 
 consist of the following existing lots:  

- DL 4992 Group 1 NWM District  
- DL 4991 Group 1 except part subdivided by plan 52302 
- Lot 38 DL 229 and 4991 Group 1 NWP 52302 
- Lot 11 Block 10 DL 229 Group 1 NWP 1095 
 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 
 regarding a Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program 
 Recommendation: 
 That the Chief Administrative Officer work in a collaborative manner with   
 Naomi Horsford, Manager, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations, Port of 
 Vancouver, to bring back a Council report and a proposed contract on 
 developing a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program for Bedwell Bay, 
 and other potential areas.     
5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated March 11, 2019 
 regarding Resident Use of the Village Hall 
 Recommendation: 
 That the Chief Administrative Officer continue to work towards implementing 
 a Resident Use of the Village Hall Plan; and 
 That the Plan and Terms of Use for the Village Hall be prepared for Council 
 approval.   
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019 
 The Bylaw Amendment corrects a clerical error in definitions. Notice of the proposed 

Bylaw Amendment was advertised in the Tri-Cities News as per the Local Government 
Act. 

 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                

No. 530, 2019 be read a third time; and 
 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                

No. 530, 2019 be adopted. 
7.2 Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019  
 Recommendation: 

That “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019” 
be adopted. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 11, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\03 11 2019 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

7.3 Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 
Bylaw No. 532, 2019 

 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 

Bylaw No. 532, 2019” be adopted 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.4 be received. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Danyta Welch, Manager, Local Government Program Services, UBCM, dated 
 February 21, 2019 regarding 2018 Asset Management Planning Program 
 (Municipal Roads Condition Assessment – Phase 2) 
8.2 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, dated 
 February 22, 2019 regarding TransLink 
8.3 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, dated March 6, 2019 
 regarding 2018 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Call-Out Statistics 
8.4 Sandra Chapman, Belcarra Resident, dated March 7, 2019 regarding New Parking 
 Bylaw 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the March 11, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held February 25, 2019 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works 
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
Others in Attendance 
Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 25, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, February 25, 2019 be approved as 

circulated.  
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 11, 2019 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held February 11, 2019 be 
 adopted. 

CARRIED 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items presented. 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 February 25, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 25, 2019 

Page 2 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\3.1 2019 02 25 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Nancy Gomerich, NG Consulting, provided a report dated February 25, 2019 regarding 

the 2019 – 2023 Financial Plan. 
 N. Gomerich provided a PowerPoint presentation as follows: 

• Plan Context & Development Process 
• Project Highlights 
• Property Tax & Fee Proposals, & Drivers 

o Inflation / Cost Increases 
o Salaries & Benefits – tied to Region 
o Waste and Recycle Depot (WARD) 
o Water Fund 
o General Fund 
o Other Government Property Taxes 
o Taxable Assessment – BC Assessment Authority 

• Overview Revenues, Expenses, Reserves & Surplus 
• Next Steps 

o Adopt 2019 – 2023 Financial Plan Bylaw prior to May 15, 2019 
o Adopt Amended Fees Bylaw 
o April / May – Adoption of Tax Rate Bylaw prior to May 15, 2019 

 N. Gomerich noted that a considerable amount of work went into the budget preparation 
over several meetings with both Council and public input.  

 Discussion ensued with regard to Council policy. A Water Fund increase of $119.00 to 
fund Water Capital Reserves was added to the budget. Council will further refine plans 
for funds when the Corporate Strategic Plan is finalized.  

 Mayor Belenkie noted that the lighting at the 8 Bus Stops will only proceed if a 100% 
funded grant from TransLink is obtained. The Honourable Selena Robinson is working 
to help secure funding from TransLink. It was noted that the Marine Avenue stair 
improvement in the amount of $10,000.00 remains in the budget but is deferred for 
further discussion with the community.  

 Mayor Belenkie advised that the Midden Road overlay in the amount of $60,000.00 
was a minimum repair. The Village has requested TransLink to move the bus stop off 
Midden Road to prevent further damage by Transit buses. 

 Councillor Drake noted that the Revenue Generation Committee may look at Midden 
Road to determine whether it may be closed and if there is potential for lot development. 

 Mayor Belenkie has meetings scheduled with Metro Vancouver to discuss the small 
municipality funding model, the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department and the Water 
System funding. 
a) 2019 – 2023 Financial Plan 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That the 2019 – 2023 Financial Plan Report be received for information. 

CARRIED 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 25, 2019 

Page 3 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\3.1 2019 02 25 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

b) Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019  
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
That the Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019 be 
read a first, second and third time. 

CARRIED 
c) Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw 

No. 532, 2019 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 532, 2019 be read a first, second and third time. 

 CARRIED 
5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, provided a report dated February 12, 2019 

regarding Residential Only Parking within the Village 
 L. Dysart outlined the report and the proposed bylaw changes. The changes are to 

implement Resident Only Parking in the Village. This will address issues related to 
overflow parking demands for visitors to Belcarra Regional Park. Residents would be 
provided with 2 parking passes per residence as well as additional passes will be 
available for guests. 

 Discussion ensued with regard to the issuance of special parking permits for groups 
such as the scuba divers, kayakers and the Waterski Club. 

 Council and residents discussed parking issues in certain areas. It was suggested that 
Resident Only Parking be a topic for discussion at a Town Hall meeting. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the report from Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer dated February 12, 2019 
 regarding “Residential Only Parking” within the Village be deferred. 

CARRIED 
Mayor Belenkie & Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
Belcarra Ireland 
Councillor Drake asked that Council and residents in attendance sign a St. Patrick’s 
Day card that will be sent to Belcarra Ireland as a token of friendship.  

 Speculation Tax 
 Mayor Belenkie provided an update on his efforts to have the Speculation Tax removed 
 in Belcarra.  
 Metro Vancouver / Parks 
 Mayor Belenkie provided information regarding Metro Vancouver support for the
 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department and the Belcarra  Water System. He noted that     
 an agreement for a water connection for the picnic area of Belcarra Regional Park has 
 been negotiated. A report will be brought to Council in this regard. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 25, 2019 

Page 4 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\3.1 2019 02 25 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 529, 2019  

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 529, 2019” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.3 be received. 

 CARRIED 
 ACTION 
8.1 Belcarra Barnacle Society, letter dated February 20, 2019 regarding 2019 Community 

Grant Request 
 Considerable discussion ensued with regard to the Belcarra Barnacle Society grant 

request.  
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the Belcarra Barnacle Society 2019 request for a Grant in the amount of 
$1,500.00 be approved; and  
That the grant be paid at the end of May 2019; and 
That additional accounting information be requested from the Belcarra Barnacle Society.  

CARRIED 
INFORMATION  

8.2 Steven Kozuki, Executive Director, Forest Enhancement Society of British Columbia, 
letter dated February 6, 2019 regarding Forest Enhancement Society of BC January 
2019 Accomplishments Report (full report available in the Village office) 

8.3 Rob Fleming, Ministry of Education, copy of letter to the Chair, School District #43 and 
Mayor Vagramov, Port Moody dated February 21, 2019 regarding a request for a 
facilitator to assist the Coquitlam Board of Education and the City of Port Moody 
relating to two potential school sites for a revised School Site Acquisition Charges 
(SSAC) system for the Coquitlam School District. 

9. NEW BUSINESS  
 Bear Bylaw 
 Councillor Drake provided an overview on properties where garbage has become an 
 attractant for bears and other dangerous wildlife. Discussion ensued with regard to the 
 creation of a Bylaw to provide an avenue for warnings and fines for residents where 
 properties cause unnecessary wildlife issues. 

 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 25, 2019 

Page 5 of 5 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\3.1 2019 02 25 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by:  Councillor Clark 
That staff to prepare a Bear Bylaw with warnings and fines related to wildlife issues. 

CARRIED 
Resident Hall Use 
Mayor Belenkie provided an update of the use of the Hall by residents. A reasonable 
alternate fob access system has been established with the alarm company. Work is 
continuing on providing access to residents. Mayor Belenkie advised that requirements 
surrounding a “beer fridge” for residents using the Village Hall has been approved by 
the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch, Province of BC. 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD  
 Ken McCarthy, 184 Turtlehead Road, queried with regard to progress with the 
 Vancouver Port Authority. 
 Deborah Struk, 4575 Belcarra Bay Road, queried with regard to a Resident Only 
 Parking sign at the entrance to the Village.  
 Jim Chisholm, 4505 Belcarra Bay Road, queried with regard to the cost of “no parking” 
 signs in the Village  
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the February 25, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9: 28 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
 
Date: March 11, 2019  

From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: Hamber Island Subdivision Application – Resolution to 
authorize Statutory Rights of Way for drainage, snow clearing, 
and turnaround  

 
 
Recommendation  
That Council authorize the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer to sign two Statutory Rights 
of Way documents related to the proposed subdivision of the Saito Lands, which consist of the 
following existing lots:  

- DL 4992 Group 1 NWM District  
- DL 4991 Group 1 except part subdivided by plan 52302 
- Lot 38 DL 229 and 4991 Group 1 NWP 52302 
- Lot 11 Block 10 DL 229 Group 1 NWP 1095 

 
Purpose 
To seek authorization from Council to sign two Statutory Rights of Way related to the proposed 
subdivision of the Saito Lands to provide the Village with a snow clearing and turnaround space 
on Turtlehead Road and to provide for storm drainage.   
 
Background 
Subdivision Proposal and Context 

The Village of Belcarra (Village) has received and reviewed a subdivision application (as 
indicated in Figure 1) pertaining to the Saito Lands (site).  
The Saito Lands currently consist of four properties as listed above, which would be subdivided 
to consolidate the lands into two properties, namely Lot 1 and Lot 2.  
The adjacent property to the northeast (Lot 37) is not subject to the subdivision, but the owners 
have also have agreed to the relevant Statutory Rights of Way (SRWs) outlined in this report.  
 
  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Hamber Island Subdivision Application – SRW 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
March 11, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.2 2019 03 11 Hamber Island SRW.docx 

 
Figure 1. Sketch of Saito Lands Proposed Subdivision (for illustrative purposes only) 

 
 
 
Proposed Statutory Rights of Way 
 
Prior to the subdivision application being submitted, the Village negotiated with the applicant for 
two Statutory Rights of Way (SRWs). Those SRWs are now required to be legally registered on 
title as part of the subdivision process for these properties. These SRWs both apply to proposed 
Lot 2 and existing Lot 37. One SRW allows for snow clearing and vehicle turnaround on 
Turtlehead Road. The other SRW allows for storm drainage through Lot 37 and Proposed Lot 2. 
 
The SRWs are illustrated in Figure 2, below.  
 
  



Hamber Island Subdivision Application – SRW 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
March 11, 2019 
Page 3 of 5 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.2 2019 03 11 Hamber Island SRW.docx 

Figure 2. Sketch of Relevant SRWs (for illustrative purposes only) 

 
 
The signature of the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer are required as the Village is the 
Transferee of the SRWs under this subdivision, and therefore has certain obligations to the 
Transferors (i.e. the owners of proposed Lot 2 and existing Lot 37). These obligations have 
been reviewed by the Village’s lawyer and have been deemed agreeable given the rights 
granted to the Village by the SRWs. These obligations relate primarily to carrying out any work 
in a manner that avoids damaging the SRW lands and to repair damage that may be caused by 
any such works.  
The obligations to the Village (i.e. “Covenants of the Transferee”) are listed in full as an 
attachment to this report.  
 
Additional Considerations and Application Context 
The purpose of this report to Council is to seek approval for the Mayor and Chief Administrative 
Officer to sign two SRW documents to complete the subdivision process for the Hamber Island 
properties. The overall merits of the proposed subdivision application have been assessed per 
the delegated authority of the Approving Officer. The following information is provided for 
Council’s reference. 
Under the proposed subdivision, Hamber Island and the north part of the isthmus (the space 
between the mainland and the island) would be consolidated into one 3.26 acre lot (“Lot 1”). The 
two mainland lots and the south part of the isthmus would be consolidated into one 1.06 acre lot 
(“Lot 2”).  
Village Staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision application and find it to be based in 
sound planning logic, including expanding access and clarifying access agreements. 
Considerations include: 

- The applicant has been working with the Village for a number of years on 
comprehensive development plans for the site, including obtaining building permits in  
 



Hamber Island Subdivision Application – SRW 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
March 11, 2019 
Page 4 of 5 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.2 2019 03 11 Hamber Island SRW.docx 

 
2010 for the construction of a bridge and a house on Hamber Island. This bridge enables 
direct access from Hamber Island to Turtlehead Road.  

- For the purposes of subdivision, Lot 1 would be considered water access only and the 
Approving Officer would grant relief from the highway access requirements of the Land 
Titles Act. However, as part of the proposed subdivision, the applicant will register an 
easement on title to allow formalized access to Lot 1 over Lot 2 and existing Lot 37, the 
adjacent property to the northeast. This will ensure access to Turtlehead Road. A bridge 
has been constructed on site that will ensure Hamber Island is accessible by firetruck. 

- The proposed subdivision is not anticipated to impact the compliance of any existing 
principal building with setback requirements under the Zoning Bylaw. An existing shed is 
located within a setback area on the south edge of proposed Lot 2. The applicant has 
been notified that this shed is an existing non-conforming structure and any future 
expansion or reconstruction of the shed would be required to comply with the Zoning 
Bylaw.  

- Access will be provided to both proposed lots by one driveway, limiting the amount of 
paving required and the number of driveways onto Turtlehead Road, which is beneficial 
from an urban design and surface permeability perspective.  

- Both proposed lots will comply with minimum lot area requirements of the Zoning Bylaw.  
 
Conclusion 

The SRWs described in this report will grant the Village rights to a turnaround and snow clearing 
area, as well as ensure drainage access through the Saito Lands. As such, Staff is seeking 
authorization from Council for the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer to sign the relevant 
SRWs.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Appendix A. Statutory Right of Way “Covenants of the Transferee” 
 
  



Hamber Island Subdivision Application – SRW 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
March 11, 2019 
Page 5 of 5 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.2 2019 03 11 Hamber Island SRW.docx 

 
Attachment A. Statutory Rights of Way “Covenants of the Transferee” (provided for information 

purposes only)  
 
Turnaround and Snow Removal SRW 
 

 
 
Storm Drainage SRW  
 

 
 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\2019 03 11 Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) 
Program.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: March 11, 2019  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program 
 
 
Recommendation  
That the Chief Administrative Officer work in a collaborative manner with Naomi Horsford, 
Manager, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations, Port of Vancouver, to bring back a Council 
report and a proposed contract on developing a Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program for 
Bedwell Bay, and other potential areas.     
 
Purpose 

To request the Chief Administrative Officer to bring back a report to Council on a proposed Designated 
Anchorage Area Program similar to the Program that has been developed in Port Moody.  Port Moody 
worked on developing a Pilot Project over a two-year period with significant public consultation.  The 
complete Port Moody program was implemented over a four-year time period. The Port Moody project, 
which has now been implemented, will be useful for staff to review.   
   
Background 

Belcarra has experienced an increase in boats anchored in Bedwell Bay as a result of a Designated 
Anchorage Area being implemented in Port Moody. In addition to an increase in the number of boats, it is 
noted that the boaters’ length of stay has increased, and some boats may be anchored all year.  Boats 
discharging their waste into the Bay is not permitted under Transport Canada regulation, but without a 
DAA it is a difficult situation to manage.  When the City of Port Moody implemented the DAA in July 
2016, the increase in boats anchoring in Bedwell Bay increased significantly.   
 
The District of North Vancouver is also working on a plan to develop a DAA in Deep Cove.  The 
implementation of a DAA in Deep Cove may further increase the number of boats being anchored in 
Bedwell Bay. 
 
There will be many aspects to develop a plan for a Designated Anchorage Area in Bedwell Bay.  
Terms and Conditions of a contract with Port Metro Vancouver, and an outline of costs and cost 
recovery options for the DAA Program will be included in a report that will be brought back to 
Council. Consideration of a DAA Program will include implementing a DAA with mooring 
buoys demarking the anchorage area.  Work on the DAA program will be over and above the 
work plan in the 2019 Corporate Strategic Plan.   
 
Attached: 2 plans from the Port on a proposed DAA for Belcarra.   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



Bedwell Compact DAA
Chaft

Ir
[|z
!:
fi +

!s
fo
f¡ e

ffis
fì ts

Ito
Jn
Irs
[]zz
ffiæ
fr
Iz
Js

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

I
13

74

T7

19

22

23

1

2

5

THIS MAF I5 FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY!
Accurac¿ curency and completeness of
this map cannot be guaranteed. Any map
for external use MUST be requested from
the Spatial Data Group.

^

0 0.'15 0.3
km

1:9,028

Prov¡nce of BC

. West North
Vancouver Vsncouver

CLon CoQuitlam

UBC
Moody p64

van.ouu"rB'*tbY coq

Pitt
M, Maple

Ridge

Rlchmond

Delta Surrey
Langley

Tsawwassen
Flrst Nôt¡on White

An¡L

PORT of
vancouver('Ð

7/23/2oL8



Bedwell Compact DAA

THIS MAP IS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY!
Accuracy, currency and completeness of
this map cannot be guaranteed. Any map
for external use MUST be requested from
the Spatial Data Group.

^

0 0.15 0.3
km

L:9,028

Prov¡nce of BC

West North
Vancouver Våncouver

qort coquitlam

Moody Þort Pitt

'*u"n.ouu"."u-"0, b;o', t'

Richmond

Delta Surrey

Tsawwassen
F¡rst Nation White

Maple
Ridge

Langley

9aab

PORT of
vancouver('Ð

7/23/2OL8



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.4 2019 03 11 Resident Use of 
Village Hall.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: March 11, 2019  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Resident Use of the Village Hall  
 
 
Recommendation  
That the Chief Administrative Officer continue to work towards implementing a Resident Use of 
the Village Hall Plan; and 
That the Plan and Terms of Use for the Village Hall be prepared for Council approval.   
 
Purpose 

The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) was requested to work towards implementing a Resident Use of 
the Hall plan that would provide for residents to have access to the Hall without the requirement for a 
rental agreement or separate insurance.   
   
Background 

The CAO was requested by Mayor Belenkie to review the feasibility of providing resident access 
to the Hall without a requirement to book the Hall.  The company that provides security for the 
Village Office and Hall is Cobra International.  It has been determined that the FOBs used by 
residents to access the Waste and Recycle Depot may be reprogrammed to provide access to the 
Hall.  In addition to changing the access use to the Hall, each resident would be required to have 
a key for the Hall door, which will cost approximately $20 each, plus a security code for each 
FOB will need to be assigned.   
 
When there are no previous bookings for the Hall, access would be considered from 5 to 9 pm 
each day and on Saturdays, Sundays and statutory Holidays from 10 am to 5 pm.  A calendar will 
be posted on the website to show Hall bookings. 
 
Currently the Hall is rented out for various uses including an occasional wedding and other 
family events.  Hall rental includes a charge of $200 for an application fee, a $300 rental charge 
and an $800 refundable security deposit.  The Community Recreation Association of Belcarra 
(CRAB) hosts several community events in the Hall during the year.  All users of the Hall are 
required to obtain their own insurance from the Municipal Insurance Association. Insurance for 
each Hall usage is approximately $150 per event and each group renting the Hall is responsible 
for obtaining a Liquor License, which accompanies their application.  The Hall rental agreement 
ensures that the Hall is cleaned and left in the condition it was when rented.   
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Resident Use of Village Hall 
March 11, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\5.4 2019 03 11 Resident Use of Village Hall.docx 

 
 
The Municipal Insurance Association of BC (MIA) are the insurance providers for the Village of 
Belcarra.  MIA was questioned about the cost of insurance and liability if the Hall was used by 
the public without a contract.   MIA advised that there would not be an increase in the Village 
premium, if the Village allowed public use of the Hall.  MIA cautioned that allowing unrestricted 
use of the Hall by the public may open the Village up to liability claims and that could cause an 
increase in the Village insurance premiums. 
  
MIA further noted that when the facilities are rented and the user group provides their own 
insurance, the Village is protected by transferring the liability exposure to the user.  If the Village 
proceeds as outlined, risk is not transferred and chances are that, if there is a loss and a claim is 
made, the Village insurance policy will be the only policy available to respond to a claim.  MIA 
inquired if the Village will have any control over activities that will take place in the Hall. 
 
The Village server room with all electronic security equipment and computers are stored in a 
closet in the Hall.  Plans are in place to have an alarm placed on the security closet door. The 
information and material in that closet are a vital part of the operation of the municipality.   
 
Mayor Belenkie received confirmation from the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch that users 
of the Village Hall would be legally able to bring their own alcohol into the Hall for 
consumption without the requirement for a Liquor License.  If alcohol is permitted, a separate 
fridge is recommended for this use. Staff will not be responsible for the handling, cleanup or 
storage of alcohol.   
 
 
 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 530, 2019 Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment.docx 

  
 

An amendment bylaw to correct a clerical error in a definition, clarify definitions related to Grade, 
and to provide metric and imperial conversions throughout the Zoning Bylaw.  

 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019”. 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended: 

a) By removing the following text from Section 104 – Definitions: 

• “Grade means the levels of finished ground adjoining each exterior wall of a building; 
• Average Finished Grade means the average of elevations of each exterior wall of a 

proposed building taken at the time of enactment of this Bylaw (refer to General 
Regulation Section 206 for method of calculation); 

• Average Natural Grade means the average of natural elevations at each exterior wall of 
a proposed building prior to construction and grading, taken at the time of enactment of 
this Bylaw (refer to General Regulation Section 206 for method of calculation);” 

b) And by adding the following text to Section 104 – Definitions: 

• “Grade means the Elevation of the surface of the ground; 
• Grade, Average means with reference to a Building or Structure, the average of the 

Grades (Natural or Finished) around the perimeter of a Building or Structure as 
determined in accordance with Section 206 of this Bylaw; 

• Grade, Finished means the Grade after Development on a Lot; 
• Grade, Natural means the Grades on a Lot taken at the time of enactment of this 

Bylaw;” 

c)  And by adding metric and imperial conversions throughout the bylaw. 

 
Read a First Time on February 11, 2019   
 
Read a Second Time on February 11, 2019 
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019 
 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



 

  
 

 
 

A bylaw to approve the 5 Year Financial Plan for the years 2019 – 2023 inclusive. 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter stating that a 
municipality must have a financial plan adopted annually, by bylaw, before the 15th of 
May in each year; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council has caused to be prepared a 5 Year Financial 
Plan for the period 2019 – 2023 inclusive; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra 5 Year 
Financial Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019”. 

2. Council hereby adopts the 5 Year Financial Plan for the years 2019 – 2023 
inclusive, for each year of the plan, as set out in Schedules A and B, attached to 
and forming part of this bylaw. 

3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on February 25, 2019    
 
READ A SECOND TIME on February 25, 2019  
 
READ A THIRD TIME on February 25, 2019 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on   
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of  
Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial  
Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
5-Year Financial Plan 2019-2023 

Bylaw No. 531, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.2



Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 531, 2019 - Five Year Financial Plan 2019-
2023.docx 

Schedule A – Financial Plan 
 

 
  



Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019  
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 531, 2019 - Five Year Financial Plan 2019-
2023.docx 

Schedule B – Statement of Objectives and Policies 
 

 



 

  
 

A bylaw to amend fees and charges for services and information 

WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 

AND WHEREAS the Village of Belcarra Council has deemed it necessary to amend its fees and charges 
bylaw; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw  
No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019” 

2. That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

 a) In Schedule 10 “Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal” by  

replacing: 

 “Authorized User (per parcel of real property  $304.00 per annum 
 improved or unimproved) 

 Authorized User (non-resident)    $304.00 per annum 

 Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $304.00 per annum” 

 with: 

 “Authorized User (per parcel of real property   $316.00 per annum 
  improved or unimproved) 

 Authorized User (non-resident)    $316.00 per annum 

 Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $316.00 per annum” 

b) In “Schedule 13 – Waterworks Fees” by  

replacing: 

“Basic Fee – Fire Protection 
(prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic 
 or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $591.00 

Use Fee – Domestic 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00 

Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00” 

with: 

“Basic Fee – Fire Protection 
(prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic 
 or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $714.00 

Use Fee – Domestic 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00 

Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System 
(pro-rated as of one month after the first day of 
the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00” 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 

Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.3



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018.docx` 

2 

 c) In Schedule 2 “Building Permit and Inspection Services” by  

replacing all schedules (2a and 2b) with the following schedules: 

Schedule 2a – Building Permit and Inspection Services 
Permit Fees and Inspection Services  

Description Fee 

Building Permit Application Fee includes Plumbing Permit $102.00/Construction up to $5,000.00 value 

$116.00/Construction over $5,000.00 value 
Simple Buildings or Structures  

Construction up to $5,000.00 of value $27.00/$1,000.00 (minimum fee $102.00) 

Construction $5,001.00 to $20,000.00 of value $15.00/$1,000.00 plus $68.00 base fee 

Construction $20,001.00 to $50,000.00 of value $12.00/$1,000.00 plus $816.00 base fee 

Construction $50,001.00 to $500,000.00 of value $10.00/$1,000.00 plus $1,360.00 base fee 

Construction $500,001.00 and over of value $8.00/$1,000.00 plus $3,400.00 base fee 

In cases of repairs to simple buildings where latent water 
penetration has resulted in structural deterioration or damage the 
applicable above building permit fees will be waived. 

 

Complex Buildings  
Construction up to $5,000.00 of value $20.00/$1,000.00 (minimum fee $102.00) 

Construction $5,001.00 to $20,000.00 of value $16.00/$1,000.00 plus $68.00 base fee 

Construction $20,001.00 to $50,000.00 of value $12.00/$1,000.00 plus $136.00 base fee 

Construction $50,001.00 to $500,000.00 of value $10.00/$1,000.00 plus $279.00 base fee 

Construction $500,001.00 and over of value $7.00/$1,000.00 plus $1,204.00 base fee 

In cases of repairs to complex buildings where latent water 
penetration has resulted in structural deterioration or damage the 
applicable above building permit fees will be waived. 

 

Professional Plan Certification When a building permit is issued in reliance 
upon the certification of a registered 
professional that the design and plans 
submitted comply with the building code the 
permit fee is reduced by 5% of the fees 
payable up to a maximum of $680.00 

Temporary Building or Structure  

0 to 56m² area of building footprint  $102.00 

Greater than 56m² area of building footprint $204.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018.docx` 

3 

 
Schedule 2a – Building Permit and Inspection Services, continued 

Building Permit and Inspection Services  

Description Fee 

Building or Structure Demolition  

0 to 56m² area of building footprint  $102.00 

greater than 56m² area of building footprint $204.00 

Building or Structure Move or Relocation  

0 to 56m² area of building footprint  $184.00 minimum plus $82.00 per hour 
Inspector Fees if inspection exceeds 2 hours 

greater than 56m² area of building footprint $422.00 plus $476.00 per hour Inspector 
Fees if inspection exceeds 2 hours 

Examination of a building  $286.00 plus $163.00 per hour Inspector 
Fees if inspection exceeds 2 hours 

Disconnection of municipal services, if applicable $204.00 

Swimming Pools or Retaining Structures  

Construction up to $5,000.00 of value $20.00/$1000.00 (minimum fee $102.00) 

Greater than $5,000.00 of value $20.00/$1000.00 plus $340.00 base fee 

Chimney, Fireplaces and Solid Fuel Appliances  

Fireplaces, solid fuel appliances  $490.00/appliance 

natural or propane gas fired heating devices requiring a vent 
connection to the outdoors, except hot water storage tanks  

$163.00/appliance 

Each chimney and pre-fabricated chimney $54.00/chimney 

Each hot water storage tank or boiler vent $54.00/vent 

Excavation or Site Preparation  

Foundation excavation or site investigation $408.00 (deducted from Building Permit 
Fee if application approved) 

Building Site Services  

Driveway access and off street parking $136.00 

New or replacement underground water services  $54.00/10 metres of pipe 

New or replacement underground storm sewer pipe $54.00/10 metres of pipe 

On site catch basin, oil interceptor, sump or connection to a 
municipal utility. 

$54.00 each 

 
  



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018.docx` 

4 

 
 Schedule 2a – Building Permit and Inspection Services, continued 

Building Permit and Inspection Services  

Description Fee 

Plumbing Permit & Fixture Fees  

Plumbing Permit Application Fee, if separate from a Building 
Permit 

$61.00 

Municipal Water Connection   See Schedule 13 

Fixture fee, as defined by Bylaw and the BC Building Code $27.00 each fixture 
(minimum fee $102.00) 

Water storage tanks, check valves, outdoor showers $27.00 each 

Swimming pool supply, drainage backflow preventer $109.00/pool 

No Fixture but installation of soil, waste or drainage pipe $54.00/10 metres of pipe 

Fire Sprinkler Heads – first 50 heads, per head 

• Minimum fee 

• each additional HEAD 

$4.00 

$68.00 

$4.00 

Building Permit Extension $1,360.00 

Building Permit transfer to new property owner $653.00 

Penalties  

Double Permit Fees for construction prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit 

Permit Fee (x 2) (maximum of $6,800.00) 

STOP WORK order posting $490.00 per order 

STOP WORK order re-posting due to unauthorized removal $326.00 per order 

DO NOT OCCUPY order posting $326.00 per order 

DO NOT OCCUPY order re-posting due to unauthorized removal $326.00 per order 

Plan Review/Miscellaneous Inspection Fee  

Re-inspection fee for each inspection after the second consecutive 
inspection  

$82.00 per hour 

3rd inspection - $163.00 per hour 

4th inspection - $326.00 per hour 

5th inspection - $490.00 per hour 

6th inspection – $979.00 per hour  
Building Inspector, inspection fee for undefined inspections  $82.00 per hour  
Emergency Inspections outside regular office hours $163.00 per hour 

Plan review for a design modification after Building Permit 
issuance 

$163.00 per hour 

Equivalency Report review $163.00 per hour 

  



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018.docx` 

5 

  Schedule 2a – Building Permit and Inspection Services, continued 
Building Permit and Inspection Services  

Description Fee 

Security Deposits (Cash, Cheque or Certified Cheque)  

Construction security deposit 0.75% constructed value 

Temporary building security deposit $10.75 x constructed value 

Move or relocate a building or structure - an additional security  $20,000.00  

Work near High Precision Network survey monuments $7,000.00 

Secondary Suites  

Decommissioning – application fee $68.00 

Decommissioning – inspection fee $136.00 

Address Change  

Address Change - When an owner requests a new address $408.00 

 
  
Schedule 2b – Building Permit and Inspection Services 

Building Department Documents & Services  
Description Fee 

Building and Property Record Search  

Record Searches where it is determined by the Department Head 
that research could involve staff time in excess of 15 minutes  
• Building Permits (single family, duplex buildings, accessory 

suites, civic or institutional buildings) 
• Board of Variance rulings 
• Development Variance rulings 

 

First Hour $136.00 

a deposit of $272.00 required prior to 
work being done 

Each additional 15 minutes or portion thereof $34.00 

Building Plan Reproduction  

Offsite copying or larger than 279mm x 431mm (11” x 17”) $204.00 plus actual cost of reproduction 
 
a deposit of $204.00 required prior to 
work being done 

File Notice on Title, pursuant to section 57 of the Community 
Charter 

$408.00 

Cancel Notice on Title, pursuant to section 58 of the Community 
Charter 

$408.00 

Property Title Search $102.00 

 
 
 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\03 11 2019\Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018.docx` 

6 

  
 
READ A FIRST TIME on February 25, 2019  
 
READ A SECOND TIME on February 25, 2019 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on February 25, 2019 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4


	3.1 2019 02 25 - Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019 be read a first, second and third time.
	Moved by:  Councillor Clark
	Certified Correct:

	5.2 2019 03 11 Hamber Island SRW.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT

	5.3 2019 03 11 Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 11, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Proposed Designated Anchorage Area (DAA) Program

	5.4 2019 03 11 Resident Use of Village Hall.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 11, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Resident Use of the Village Hall

	7.1 Bylaw 530, 2019 Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to correct a clerical error in a definition, clarify definitions related to Grade, and to provide metric and imperial conversions throughout the Zoning Bylaw.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By removing the following text from Section 104 – Definitions:
	 “Grade means the levels of finished ground adjoining each exterior wall of a building;
	 Average Finished Grade means the average of elevations of each exterior wall of a proposed building taken at the time of enactment of this Bylaw (refer to General Regulation Section 206 for method of calculation);
	 Average Natural Grade means the average of natural elevations at each exterior wall of a proposed building prior to construction and grading, taken at the time of enactment of this Bylaw (refer to General Regulation Section 206 for method of calcula...
	b) And by adding the following text to Section 104 – Definitions:
	 “Grade means the Elevation of the surface of the ground;
	 Grade, Average means with reference to a Building or Structure, the average of the Grades (Natural or Finished) around the perimeter of a Building or Structure as determined in accordance with Section 206 of this Bylaw;
	 Grade, Finished means the Grade after Development on a Lot;
	 Grade, Natural means the Grades on a Lot taken at the time of enactment of this Bylaw;”
	c)  And by adding metric and imperial conversions throughout the bylaw.
	Read a First Time on February 11, 2019
	Read a Second Time on February 11, 2019
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 530, 2019

	7.2 Bylaw 531, 2019 - Five Year Financial Plan 2019-2023.pdf
	A bylaw to approve the 5 Year Financial Plan for the years 2019 – 2023 inclusive.
	WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter stating that a municipality must have a financial plan adopted annually, by bylaw, before the 15th of May in each year;
	AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council has caused to be prepared a 5 Year Financial Plan for the period 2019 – 2023 inclusive;
	NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. This Bylaw shall be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019”.
	2. Council hereby adopts the 5 Year Financial Plan for the years 2019 – 2023 inclusive, for each year of the plan, as set out in Schedules A and B, attached to and forming part of this bylaw.
	3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagrap...
	READ A FIRST TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A SECOND TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A THIRD TIME on February 25, 2019
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of  Village of Belcarra 5 Year Financial  Plan 2019– 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019
	Schedule A – Financial Plan
	Schedule B – Statement of Objectives and Policies

	7.3 Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018.pdf
	A bylaw to amend fees and charges for services and information
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	AND WHEREAS the Village of Belcarra Council has deemed it necessary to amend its fees and charges bylaw;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 463, 2013” be amended:
	a) In Schedule 10 “Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal” by
	replacing:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property  $304.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $304.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $304.00 per annum”
	with:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property   $316.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $316.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $316.00 per annum”
	b) In “Schedule 13 – Waterworks Fees” by
	replacing:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $591.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00”
	with:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $714.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00”
	c) In Schedule 2 “Building Permit and Inspection Services” by
	replacing all schedules (2a and 2b) with the following schedules:
	Permit Fees and Inspection Services
	Building Department Documents & Services
	READ A FIRST TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A SECOND TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A THIRD TIME on February 25, 2019
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw
	No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019

	7.3 Bylaw 532, 2019 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018.pdf
	A bylaw to amend fees and charges for services and information
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	AND WHEREAS the Village of Belcarra Council has deemed it necessary to amend its fees and charges bylaw;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) In Schedule 10 “Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal” by
	replacing:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property  $304.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $304.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $304.00 per annum”
	with:
	“Authorized User (per parcel of real property   $316.00 per annum
	improved or unimproved)
	Authorized User (non-resident)    $316.00 per annum
	Accessory Suite (additional dwelling unit)   $316.00 per annum”
	b) In “Schedule 13 – Waterworks Fees” by
	replacing:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $591.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00
	Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $878.00”
	with:
	“Basic Fee – Fire Protection (prorated upon date of permit for Use Fee Domestic  or Use Fee Fire Sprinkler System)    $714.00
	Use Fee – Domestic (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00
	Use Fee – Fire Sprinkler System (pro-rated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued)  $1,018.00”
	c) In Schedule 2 “Building Permit and Inspection Services” by
	replacing all schedules (2a and 2b) with the following schedules:
	Permit Fees and Inspection Services
	Building Department Documents & Services
	READ A FIRST TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A SECOND TIME on February 25, 2019
	READ A THIRD TIME on February 25, 2019
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw
	No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 532, 2019




